

UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA
www.flsb.uscourts.gov

In re:

Administrative Order 2018-05

Formation of Lawyers Advisory Committee;
and Adoption of By-Laws

In accordance with the provisions of Title 28, United States Code, Section 2077(B), and the policies promulgated by the Judicial Conference of the United States, the judges of this Court have formed a standing Bankruptcy Lawyers Advisory Committee (the "LAC"):

- (a) To receive requests from the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of Florida (the "Court") to consider issues relating to, arising from, and/or affecting the practice of law before the Court;
- (b) To recommend to the Court changes in bankruptcy practice and/or procedure throughout the district;
- (c) To act as a liaison between the Court and bankruptcy law practitioners throughout the district;
- (d) To develop, implement, and maintain various bankruptcy-related programs in the district, as requested by the Court; and
- (e) To consider or initiate any matter related to bankruptcy that it deems appropriate.

Accordingly, it is

ORDERED that the initial members of the LAC and the initial terms of their appointment are set forth on Exhibit "A" attached to this Administrative Order;

ORDERED that the By-Laws for the LAC annexed hereto Exhibit "B", are adopted, effective February 1, 2018, and

ORDERED that the Court may modify these By-Laws as needed without prior notice, by publication of a clerk's notice on the court website.

ORDERED in the Southern District of Florida, this 21st day of March 2018.



Laurel Myerson Isicoff
Chief U.S. Bankruptcy Judge

c. All Southern District of Florida Bankruptcy Judges
Joe Falzone, Clerk of Court

**LAWYER ADVISORY COMMITTEE
UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA**

The following attorneys have been appointed to serve on the Lawyer Advisory Committee. The term of service on the LAC will generally be three years; however, in order to stagger the terms, the initial terms will vary from one to three years. Members may be reappointed by the Court for one additional three-year term. The President of the Bankruptcy Bar Association will always serve a one year term, which term will straddle the second half of his or her term as president and then the first of his or her term as immediate past president of the BBA. The Chapter 13 Trustees shall, so long as there are two trustees, alternate their terms of service on the LAC.

LAC COMMITTEE MEMBER	TERM EXPIRATION
Leyza Blanco, Chair	12/31/2020
David Samole, President of the Bankruptcy Bar Association	12/31/2018
Eric Silver (Pro Bono Committee Liaison)	12/31/2018
Gerard Kouri	12/31/2019
Greg Grossman	12/31/2020
Heidi Feinman, Office of the U.S. Trustee	12/31/2018
James Schwitalla	12/31/2018
Jeffrey Fraser	12/31/2020
Michael H. Johnson	12/31/2020
Nadine White-Boyd	12/31/2019
Rilyn Carnahan	12/31/2018
Robin Weiner, Standing Chapter 13 Trustee	12/31/2019
Robert Furr, Chapter 12 Trustee	12/31/2020
Ross Hartog, Chapter 7 Panel Trustee	12/31/2019

**BY-LAWS FOR THE
FLSB Bankruptcy Lawyers Advisory Committee**

**ARTICLE I
GENERAL**

Section 1. The name of this committee is the FLSB Bankruptcy Lawyers Advisory Committee ("LAC").

Section 2. The purposes of the LAC are:

- (a) To receive requests from the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of Florida (the "Court") to consider issues relating to, arising from, and/or affecting the practice of law before the Court.
- (b) To recommend to the Court changes in bankruptcy practice and/or procedure throughout the district.
- (c) To act as a liaison between the Court and bankruptcy law practitioners throughout the district.
- (d) To develop, implement, and maintain various bankruptcy-related programs in the district, as requested by the Court.
- (e) To consider or initiate any matter related to bankruptcy that it deems appropriate.

**ARTICLE II
COMPOSITION**

Section 1. The LAC shall consist of members of the Bar of the Court selected by the Chief Judge after consultation with the other Bankruptcy Judges. The Chief Judge shall determine the total number of members of the LAC from time to time based on the needs of the Court and the Bar.

Section 2. In addition to the general members, the LAC shall include one (1) representative from each of the following entities or groups:

- (a) A member of the staff of the Office of the United States Trustee;
- (b) A chapter 7 trustee;
- (c) A chapter 13 trustee; and
- (d) A member of the board of the Bankruptcy Bar Association of the Southern District of Florida.

Section 3. Each member of the LAC shall serve a term of three (3) years.

Section 4. The initial appointments shall be staggered, one-third (1/3) to expire at the end of each of the first three years.

Section 5. The LAC shall select its own Chair.

Section 6. The Chair shall serve for a period of one (1) year beginning from the date of the first meeting of the LAC after the selection of the Chair and ending on the first meeting following selection of his or her successor. No person shall be elected to the position of Chair for more than two (2) successive years unless approved by the Chief Judge.

Section 7. Each member of the LAC shall be entitled to one (1) vote on any issue that may arise which requires a vote by the LAC, at any regular or special meeting.

Section 8. The LAC shall also include as ex officio, non-voting members any Bankruptcy Judge who wishes to take part in meetings and considerations of the LAC and the Clerk of the Bankruptcy Court or a designee of the Clerk.

Section 9. Resignation from the LAC will be accepted upon written notice to the Chair.

Section 10. The Chief Judge shall have the power to fill any vacancies that may arise, including the Chair and other officers, which may result from death, resignation, or inability to serve. Any member so appointed shall hold office for the unexpired term of the office in whose place he or she is appointed.

ARTICLE III MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

Section 1. Meetings of members shall be held within the Southern District of Florida as may from time to time be fixed by the LAC. Members may attend meetings by teleconference unless the notice of meeting specifically states that the meeting is to be in person only.

Section 2. Two-thirds (2/3) of the voting members of the LAC will represent a quorum.

Section 3. Written notice of the time and place of every meeting of members shall be given to each member by the Chair not less than fourteen (14) days before the date of the meeting, either personally or by electronic mail. Each notice of meeting shall provide a teleconference number unless the meeting has been specifically noticed to be in person only. When a meeting is adjourned to another time or place, it shall not be necessary to give notice of the adjourned meeting if the time and place to which the meeting is adjourned is announced at the meeting at which the adjournment is taken and at the adjourned meeting only business shall be transacted as might have been transacted at the original meeting. If, after the adjournment, a new date for the adjourned meeting is fixed, the Chair shall give notice of the adjourned meeting to each member not less than fourteen (14) days before the date of the meeting, either personally or by electronic mail.

Section 4. The LAC shall determine a regular meeting schedule with the anticipation that no less than four (4) meetings will be held each year. Special meetings may be called as deemed necessary by the Chair and/or the Bankruptcy Court, with the purpose, time, and place of the meeting provided in person or by electronic mail to each member at least seven (7) days before the meeting.

Section 5. The LAC shall convene at least one meeting per year to which all Bankruptcy Judges shall be invited for the purpose of engaging in a free and open discussion of issues relevant to practice before the Bankruptcy Court.

ARTICLE IV DUTIES

Section 1. Chair. The Chair shall provide required notices of meetings of the LAC, preside at such meetings, and perform such other duties as ordinarily pertain to the office. The Chair shall be the primary liaison between the LAC and the Bankruptcy Court and shall meet with the Chief Judge and, where appropriate, other Bankruptcy Judges, on a regular basis to advise of the business of the LAC.

Section 2. Vice-Chair. The Vice-Chair shall assist the Chair in the performance of any of his or her duties, and perform such other duties as the Chair, the LAC, or the Chief Judge deem necessary. In the event of the absence of the Chair, the Vice-Chair shall provide notice of and preside at meetings. In the event of the unavailability or disability of the Chair, the Vice-Chair shall become the interim Chair.

Section 3. Secretary. The Secretary shall record and keep minutes of meetings of the LAC, keep membership records of the LAC, and perform such other duties as usually pertain to the office.

Section 4. Subcommittees. The Chair may, subject to the approval of the LAC, appoint such temporary subcommittees as may from time to time be required. Subcommittees may include members

of the LAC, members of the Bar of the Court, and such other persons as the LAC may deem appropriate. Any such subcommittee shall include as its Chair a current member of the LAC who shall be responsible for oversight of the subject subcommittee.

ARTICLE V METHOD OF VOTING

The business of the LAC shall be transacted by voice vote except where vote by ballot is requested by a majority of those entitled to vote at any meeting. All voting determinations shall be made by a simple majority.

ARTICLE VI ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS

Section 1. Each member of the LAC must attend at least 75% of the regular meetings of the LAC each year.

Section 2. If any member of the LAC is not present at two (2) regularly scheduled meetings in any twelve (12) month period, or a total of five (5) regularly scheduled meetings during said member's term, the Chief Judge may request the resignation of such member.

Section 3. If any member is unable to attend a meeting of the LAC, the Member may send a designee but such designee will not count toward establishing a quorum and shall not be entitled to vote. The member will be considered absent from the meeting.

ARTICLE VII AMENDMENTS

These By-laws may be amended only by the affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the members of the LAC, provided that written notice of such proposed amendment shall have been provided to each member at least fourteen (14) days before the meeting at which the amendment is considered, and provided further that any proposed amendment must be approved by the Bankruptcy Court.